
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Crime and 
Disorder Scrutiny 
Panel 
 
 
 

Thu 31 Jan 
2013 
6.30 pm 
 
Committee Room 2 
Town Hall 
Redditch 

Public Document Pack



 
 

Access to Information - Your Rights 
 

The Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 
1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend 
Local Authority meetings 
and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the 
Freedom of Information Act 
2000, has further broadened 
these rights, and limited 
exemptions under the 1985 
Act. 

Your main rights are set out 
below:- 

• Automatic right to attend 
all Council and 
Committee meetings 
unless the business 
would disclose 
confidential or “exempt” 
information. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
agenda and public reports 
at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
minutes of the Council 
and its Committees (or 
summaries of business  

 

undertaken in private) for 
up to six years following a 
meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
lists of background 
papers used in the 
preparation of public 
reports. 

• Access, upon request, to 
the background papers 
on which reports are 
based for a period of up 
to four years from the 
date of the meeting. 

• Access to a public 
register stating the names 
and addresses and 
electoral areas of all 
Councillors with details of 
the membership of all 
Committees etc. 

• A reasonable number of 
copies of agenda and 
reports relating to items to 
be considered in public 
must be made available 
to the public attending 
meetings of the Council 
and its Committees etc. 

• Access to a list specifying 
those powers which the 
Council has delegated to its 
Officers indicating also the 
titles of the Officers 
concerned. 

• Access to a summary of the 
rights of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council and 
its Committees etc. and to 
inspect and copy 
documents. 

• In addition, the public now 
has a right to be present 
when the Council 
determines “Key Decisions” 
unless the business would 
disclose confidential or 
“exempt” information. 

• Unless otherwise stated, all 
items of business before the 
Executive Committee are 
Key Decisions.  

• (Copies of Agenda Lists are 
published in advance of the 
meetings on the Council’s 
Website: 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to 

exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact  
Michael Craggs  

Democratic Services Officer 
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel: (01527) 64252 ext. 3267 Fax: (01527) 65216 

e.mail: michael.craggs@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk   
 



 
 

 
 
 

Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Panel 

 

 

 

Thursday, 31 January 2013 

6.30 pm 

Committee Room 2 Town Hall 

 

Agenda Membership: 

 Cllrs: Andrew Brazier 
(Chair) 
Joe Baker 
Brandon Clayton 
 

Pattie Hill 
Roger Hill 
 

1. Apologies and named 
substitutes  

To receive apologies for absence and details of any 
Councillor (or co-optee substitute) nominated to attend this 
meeting in place of a member of this Panel. 
 

2. Declarations of interest 
and of Party Whip  

To invite Councillors to declare any interest they may have in 
items on the Agenda and any Party Whip. 
 
 

3. Minutes  

(Pages 1 - 6)  

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting of the Crime 
and Disorder Scrutiny Panel on 4th October 2012 as a 
correct record. 
 
(Minutes attached). 
 

4. North Worcestershire 
Community Safety 
Partnership Framework - 
Redditch  

(Pages 7 - 16)  

To consider the 2012/13 quarter 3 performance tables for the 
North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership 
Performance Framework for Redditch and to propose 
recommendations for further action based on the report if 
deemed necessary.  
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

5. North Worcestershire 
Community Safety 
Partnership minutes  

(Pages 17 - 30)  

To consider the minutes of the shadow North Worcestershire 
Community Safety Partnership meeting held on 25th 
September 2012. 
 
(Minutes attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

6. Prime and Crime 
Commissioner Election  

To receive a report on the election of a Police and Crime 
Commissioner for West Mercia and of any implications for 
Redditch.  
 
(Verbal Report) 
 



 
 
Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Panel 

 

 

Thursday, 31 January 2013 

 

7. West Mercia Police and 
Crime Panel  

To receive an update on recent West Mercia Police and 
Crime Panel meetings 
 
(Verbal report) 
 

8. Referrals  To consider any referrals to the Crime and disorder Scrutiny 
Panel direct; or arising from: 
 
• the Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 
• the Executive Committee or full Council;  
• other sources. 
 
 

9. Work Programme  

(Pages 31 - 32)  

To consider the Panel’s current Work Programme, and any 
potential items for addition. 
 
(Work Programme attached) 
 



 
 
Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Panel 

 

 

Thursday, 31 January 2013 

 

10. Exclusion of the Press 
and Public  

Should it be necessary, in the opinion of the Borough 
Director, during the course of the meeting to consider 
excluding the public from the meeting on the grounds that 
exempt information is likely to be divulged, it may be 
necessary to move the following resolution: 

“That, under S.100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following matter(s) on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
relevant paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule 
12 (A) of the said Act”. 
 
These paragraphs are as follows: 

Subject to the “public interest” test, information relating to: 

•         Para 1 – any individual; 

•         Para 2 – the identity of any individual; 

•         Para 3 – financial or business affairs; 

•         Para 4 – labour relations matters; 

•         Para 5 – legal professional privilege; 

•         Para 6 –  a notice, order or direction; 

•         Para 7 – the prevention, investigation or  

                     prosecution of crime; 

                     and may need to be considered as ‘exempt’.  

 
 
 
  

  

 
 





 
 

 

 

Crime and 
Disorder Scrutiny 
Panel 
 

 

 

Thursday, 4 October 2012 

 

 

 Chair 
 

 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Andrew Brazier (Chair), and Councillors Brandon Clayton, 
Pattie Hill and Roger Hill 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Phil Berry, Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Service  
 

 Officers: 
 

 B Houghton and J Willis 
 

 Committee Services Officer: 
 

 M Craggs 
 

 
 

39. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Joe Baker, Sheila Blagg 
(West Mercia Police Authority), and Ken Hazeldene (Hate Incident 
Partnership). 
 

40. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP  
 
There were no declarations of interest nor of any party whip.  
 

41. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on Thursday 5th 
July 2012 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair.  
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



   

CrimeCrimeCrimeCrime    andandandand    DisorderDisorderDisorderDisorder    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    PanelPanelPanelPanel    
 

 
 

Thursday, 4 October 2012 

 
42. NORTH WORCESTERSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY 

PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK - REDDITCH  
 
The Panel considered the draft Community Safety Performance 
Framework for Redditch. The information provided would form part 
of the Safer Communities Board performance report which reported 
on county-wide community safety data.  
 
Officers provided a verbal summary of the data under each theme. 
In particular, the following matters were raised: 
 

- Members felt that reducing re-offending was a significant 
challenge for the Partnership. Officers acknowledged this 
and commented that it tended to be a small number of 
prolific offenders who disproportionately affected the overall 
figures. 

 
- Officers confirmed that the Community Safety Partnership 

had been asked to consider other methods for measuring the 
impact of community payback in Redditch. 

 
- Members queried whether the significant decrease of 

recorded figures for environmental and personal anti-social 
behaviour (ASB) was due in part to the way in which these 
crimes were recorded. Officers acknowledged that this was a 
possibility. However, it was explained that very specific 
distinction has been introduced to determine which form of 
offence had been committed.  

 
- Following an apparent increase in reports of alcohol-related 

recorded crimes in Redditch, Officers confirmed that an error 
had been occurred in the way this figure had been 
calculated. Clarification would be provided to Members on 
the correct figure once this was available.  

 
- Officers clarified that a fifty per cent increase in LGBT Hate 

Crime was an increase from two crimes committed during 
this period to three.  

 
- Members were very pleased with the significant reduction in 

Night-Time Economy (NTE) recorded crime. This was due a 
number of contributing factors, including the installation of 
improved lighting to assist CCTV coverage at late night 
venues in the town centre. Other interventions included 
improved landscaping and targeted police patrols at key 
times and locations in the town centre. 

 

Page 2



   

CrimeCrimeCrimeCrime    andandandand    DisorderDisorderDisorderDisorder    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    PanelPanelPanelPanel    
 

 
 

Thursday, 4 October 2012 

 
- A Member commented that ‘Shoplifting’ did not seem to 

reflect the seriousness of offences of this type and 
suggested that it should be referred to as ‘Theft’. 

 
- It was questioned whether ‘Arson’ and ‘Deliberate Fires’ 

were essentially the same form of offence. Furthermore, 
there was some surprise that the figures included within the 
report were so low given the spate of bin fires within 
particular areas of the Borough. Officers reported that the 
current figures did not include the time period when the spate 
of bin fires had occurred.  Officers also agreed to provide the 
specific definitions for the two fire categories.    

 
It was explained that, unless any breakdown figures for specific 
areas of crime was requested by Members, future performance 
information for Redditch could be made publicly available.  
 
Criminal Damage  
 
As requested at the previous meeting, Members were provided with 
a comprehensive report detailing criminal damage in Redditch. This 
included: a full definition of ‘criminal damage’, including the different 
types of criminal damage offences; trends in the Borough; figures 
between 1st April and 31st July 2012 for each ward; and total 
criminal damage to types of building.  
 
Members heard that criminal damage in Redditch was very steadily 
declining. They were also informed that criminal damage to a 
vehicle was the most prevalent type of offence within this crime 
type. However, it was very difficult to implement preventative 
measures as a deterrent as this was typically an instinctive offence.  
 
There was some concern regarding the number of offences against 
schools. Officers thought that the limited surveillance of some 
buildings outside of school hours could be a contributing factor.   
 
The Panel heard that the Partnership provided advice on what 
people could do to prevent criminal damage being caused on 
buildings. This was usually a lengthy process which could involve a 
full on-site assessment.  
 
Officers would continue to monitor general criminal damage figures 
in Redditch and would be able to compare this data against other 
districts.  
 
 
 

Page 3



   

CrimeCrimeCrimeCrime    andandandand    DisorderDisorderDisorderDisorder    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    PanelPanelPanelPanel    
 

 
 

Thursday, 4 October 2012 

 
North Worcestershire Hate Crime Report 
 
Finally, the Panel received a detailed breakdown of recorded hate 
crimes in Redditch from between April and August 2012.  
 
It was explained that the Hate Incident Partnership Scheme gave 
affected residents the opportunity to report incidents external to the 
Police, either to the Council or other partner agencies. However, all 
relevant authorities worked together and with the victim to ensure 
that any offences were thoroughly investigated and appropriate 
actions taken.  
 
Officers agreed to facilitate an opportunity for Members to attend 
training sessions which prepared partner agencies for dealing with 
these issues.  
 
(During consideration of this item, Members considered matters that 
necessitated the disclosure of exempt information.  Given that there 
was no discussion of the exempt matters under consideration, 
exclusion of the public and press was not necessary. There is 
nothing exempt in this record of the proceedings.) 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
The reports be noted.  
 

43. NORTH WORCESTERSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY 
PARTNERSHIP  
 
The Panel received the minutes of the Shadow North 
Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership (NWCSP) meeting 
on 3rd July 2012. Members heard that, as the NWCSP remained in 
shadow form, a decision had yet to be made on which information 
was to be made publicly available. Members were informed that 
that the NWCSP would try to be as transparent with its information 
as possible, although information would need to remain confidential 
where this was about specific individuals or locations.  
 
Members touched upon and raised questions about a number of 
issues within the minutes, including the development of the draft 
performance framework for the shadow body. It was the intention 
for the framework themes to be consistent across all of the district 
authorities; however each individual partner would have the 
opportunity to pick up any particular issue in which it was interested.  
 
Officers also provided an overview of the NWCSP’s draft terms of 
reference and operating protocols which had recently been 

Page 4



   

CrimeCrimeCrimeCrime    andandandand    DisorderDisorderDisorderDisorder    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    PanelPanelPanelPanel    
 

 
 

Thursday, 4 October 2012 

 
endorsed by all of the individual authorities. An official application 
had since been submitted to the Home Office for the terms of 
reference to be ratified. The NWCSP would remain in shadow form 
until ratification was received from the Home Office. 
 
(During consideration of this item, Members considered matters that 
necessitated the disclosure of exempt information.  Given that there 
was no discussion of the exempt matters under consideration, 
exclusion of the public and press was not necessary. There is 
nothing exempt in this record of the proceedings.) 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted.    
 

44. POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONERS  
 
Officers provided a verbal overview of the arrangements for the 
election of Police and Crime Commissioners (PCC) to be held on 
15th November 2012. There had so far been three declared 
candidacies in the West Mercia Police area. Prospective candidates 
had up until Tuesday 16th October to declare their candidacy. 
Shropshire Council was responsible for managing the elections 
process. The Supplementary Voting System, whereby voters would 
be able to select their two preferred candidates, was to be utilised. 
The Home Office and Electoral Commission would very shortly 
begin their publicity campaigns around the elections.  
 
Members also heard that Police and Crime Panels had been 
established in advance of this election. Their principal objective 
would be to hold the Commissioner to account. Fifteen councillors, 
including the Borough Council’s relevant Portfolio Holder, Councillor 
Rebecca Blake, had been appointed onto the West Mercia Police 
and Crime Panel. Worcestershire County Council was responsible 
for the recruitment process.  Two lay members were still be 
recruited.  
 
The Police and Crime Panel had already met in shadow form. 
These meetings would become open to the public once the Panel 
had been formally endorsed.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

45. REFERRALS  
 

Page 5



   

CrimeCrimeCrimeCrime    andandandand    DisorderDisorderDisorderDisorder    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    PanelPanelPanelPanel    
 

 
 

Thursday, 4 October 2012 

 
There were no referrals. 
 

46. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Panel expressed an interest in receiving an update on the 
outcome of the Police and Crime Commission election at its next 
meeting on 3rd January 2012. Members were also interested in 
exploring its relationship with the newly formed Police and Crime 
Panel. 
 
It was expected that the Panel’s consideration of the NWCSP’s 
performance framework figures for Redditch would be able to take 
place in public session.  
 
 
RESOLVED that 
 

1) Officers to provide an update on the election of the new 
Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia at the 
next meeting; 

 
2) the Work Programme be noted.  

 
The Meeting commenced at 6.30 pm 
and closed at 8.15 pm 

Page 6



Agenda Item 4Page 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 16



Agenda Item 5Page 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 30



  
 

Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny 
Panel 

 

No Direct Ward Relevance 

31st January 2013 

 

Y:\Overview & Scrutiny \Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel\2012\121004\reports\work programme121004.doc 
 

 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 
(Report of the Chief Executive) 

Date of  
Meeting 

Subject Matter Officer(s) Responsible 
for report 

 
ALL MEETINGS 

 
REGULAR ITEMS 

 
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE) 

 Minutes of previous meeting 
 
Minutes from recent meeting of the North 
Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership 
 
Referrals from Council or Executive 
Committee, etc. (if any) 
 
Task & Finish Groups - feedback 
 
Committee Work Programme 

Chief Executive 
 
Relevant Partnership 
representative(s) 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 

  
REGULAR ITEMS 
 
Annual Strategic Assessment – Executive 
Summary 
 
 

 
 
 
Relevant Partnership 
representative(s) 

Agenda Item 9Page 31



   
 

Crime & Disorder Scrutiny 
Panel 

  

 

31st January 2013 
 

Y:\Overview & Scrutiny \Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel\2012\121004\reports\work programme121004.doc 

 
 

 
OTHER ITEMS 
- DATE FIXED 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
31st January 
2013 

 
North Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership Performance Framework, 
Quarter 3 
 

 
Relevant Partnership 
representative(s) 
 

 
31st January 
2013 

 
Police and Crime Commissioner Elections 

 
Relevant Partnership 
representative(s) 
 

 
28th March 
2013 

 
North Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership Performance Framework, 
Quarter 4 
 

 
Relevant Partnership 
representative(s) 
 

 
OTHER ITEMS 
– DATE NOT 
FIXED 

  

Page 32


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership Framework - Redditch
	5 North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership minutes
	9 Work Programme

